ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 10, 2006
1: 07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative Jim El ki ns
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Paul Seaton
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 29
Requesting the conm ssioner of natural resources to conplete a
managenent plan for the area enconpassing the Pebble copper
deposit and requesting a report to the |egislature.
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HCR 29

SHORT TI TLE: PEBBLE COPPER DEPCSI T MANAGEMENT PLAN
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER

02/ 01/ 06 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 01/ 06 (H) RES
02/ 10/ 06 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HCR 29 as sponsor.

M KE MENGE, Conmi ssi oner

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -1- February 10, 2006



Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director
Al aska M ners Associ ation
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

Rl CHARD JAMESQN, Presi dent

Renewabl e Resources Coalition

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

ROGER BURGGRAF
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HCR 29.

JEFF PARKER, Attorney

for Trout Unlimted and Robert G Il am

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

MARK HELLENTHAL
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Spokesperson

Al aska Anerican Federation of Labor and Congress
Organi zations (AFL-CI O

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

BRI AN KRAFT, Director

Bristol Bay Alliance, Business Omer

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

JACK HOBSQN, President

Nondal ton Tri bal Counci

Nondal t on, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

BOBBY ANDREW Secretary

Bristol Bay Alliance

Di|'li ngham Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

of

| ndustri al

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 2- February 10, 2006



ROBERT G LLAM

Renewabl e Resources Coalition

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 29.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR JAY RAMRAS called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:07:57 PM Represent ati ves
Ranras, Elkins, LeDoux, Crawford, Gatto and O son were present
at the call to order. Representati ves Kapsner and Sanuels

arrived as the neeting was in progress. Also in attendance was
Representative Carl Mbses.

HCR 29- PEBBLE COPPER DEPOSI T MANAGEMENT PLAN

CO CHAI R RAMRAS announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO 29, Requesting the
comm ssioner of natural resources to conplete a nmanagenent plan
for the area enconpassing the Pebble copper deposit and
requesting a report to the | egislature.

COCHAIR RAMRAS said Northern Dynasty, the mning conpany
[ proposing to mne the Pebble copper deposit], wll speak on
Monday. He referred to a letter from the Lake and Peninsula
Bor ough, which states that it will provide a position on HCR 29
follow ng a neeting on February 21, 2006.

1: 10: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAWKER, Al aska State Legi sl ature, sponsor of
HCR 29, said the proposed Pebble m ne developnent in the Iliama
regi on has trenendous nmagnitude and potential consequences. He
said he is absolutely amazed at the interest in this issue, and
as public policy makers he feels that it is inportant to nmake
sure policy reflects the state's interest. The planned m ne and
its potential benefits and conflicts rises to the level that
policymakers need to take a particular interest and not get away
from the role of assuring that the state conduct a fully open
process in full conpliance with the state's exi sting
regul ations. That is what the resolution is all about, so that
Al askans and others can have confidence in the state's process.
He said his personal intent is to nake a statenent of support
for Alaska's resource industry and a reaffirmation of the
| egislature's commtnment to be sure there is responsible
oversi ght. This is a resolution that discusses only existing

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 3- February 10, 2006



statute and regul ations, he noted, and he is not proposing any
new regul ations or increased oversight. The Pebbl e prospect is
subject, anyway, to current statutes and regulations, and he
said he firmy believes the state has an adequate regulatory
process to assure that if developnent is ultinmately approved, it
will be proper and responsible. He added that the process
allows for all folks who are concerned, for or against, to
partici pate.

1:15: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that Alaska's |and planning and
classification statutes state that the conm ssioner of the
Department of  Natural Resources (DNR) shall, wth |loca
government and public involvenent, adopt, mintain and, when
appropriate, revise regional |and-use plans that provide for the
use and nmanagenent of state-owned | and. He said statute
requires considering fiscal, econonmic and soci al factors
affecting the area; present and potential uses of state I and;
conpati ble surface and mneral |and-use classification; and it
must provide for neaningful participation in the planning
process by |local governnents, state and federal agencies,
adj acent | andowners, and the general public. He said the
process has worked well for the state. The Pebbl e copper
deposit is within the Bristol Bay Area Plan which was done by
t he Departnent of Natural Resources.

1:17: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the plan was revised in spring, 2005.
The Pebble mneral unit in the plan is designated for mnerals
devel opnent . He noted that the DNR managenent intent is as
follows: "Mneral developnment in this unit is expected to be
aut horized after a public process that is as extensive as this
area plan and with the benefit of site-specific data and design
that is prepared for the developnent and not now avail able.
M neral developnment that is subject to an extensive public and
agency process, that involves public neetings and comrent in the

area, and that involves site-specific design nmy require
different widths and habitat protection neasures than those
specified in Chapter 2 [of the area plan].” He said it is clear
that DNR staff realized that there are trenmendous resource
potenti al s. It is a phenonenal economic opportunity, but

| i kewi se, DNR concluded that the state needs to conduct further
public process as detailed as the area plan itself was.

1: 20: 01 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 4- February 10, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER said he asked DNR what that statenent is
saying, and DNR staff pointed himto the regulations underlying
area plan statutes which provide for "something they call a
managenent plan.” He noted that a managenent plan is a nore
site-specific, detailed review of a specific prospect and area.
"DNR has said this is a great resource potential but we really
need a good solid public process,” and that is why HCR 29 asks
for the public process contenplated in the area plan to be
conpleted and a report of findings and conclusions be provided

to the legislature prior to issuing final permts. He said he
would really like to know the science, and added that HCR 29
will not interfere with the work underway.

1:22:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the |anguage of the resolution cane
straight out of existing statutes, but the difference is the
| ast resolve. He said he is not qualified to evaluate the
science of the research, but DNR is. This resolution is not
asking for a debate to be conducted in the legislative body, it
is only saying there is a |arge enough debate out there that it
shoul d be conducted in a full and open process, he stated. The
| ast resolve asks the conm ssioner to provide his conclusions,
based on the science and argunents, on the appropriateness of
classifying this land for mnmineral devel oprment. He said the
| egislature is not here to evaluate the nerits of the issue, but
it is inmportant that the legislature is a responsible steward of
the resources. "W do that by assuring that we have that
conplete and open public forum as nandated by our current
statutes.”

1: 27: 18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he is asking the legislature to
"consider if there is sufficient controversy, and is this issue
significant enough to rise to the level that we want to remnd
the comm ssioner of natural resources that we are concerned that
he conducts this process to ensure a responsible outcone.”
Former Representative George Jacko from Pedro Bay told him the
process requested by HCR 29 would bring everyone to a nore
know edgeabl e position.

1: 28: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said it sounds like the only thing the
resolution does is tell the conmm ssioner to follow the law in

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 5- February 10, 2006



provi di ng public process, and she asked if Representative Hawker
feels that the conm ssioner won't do so ot herw se.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he has been in the legislature for
four years and he has found that sonetinmes the admnistration
doesn't do what the legislature wants w thout being rem nded.
He said he saw a quote from DNR staff saying there would not be
a nore extensive nmanagenent plan, which is contradictory to what
was published in the area plan. This rises to the l|evel of
requesting an extraordinary effort, he opined.

1: 30: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said there have been a nunber of |arge
projects and asked if any have had a simlar resol ution.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the |egislature passed a resolution
endorsing a Kensington Mne project only a year ago. He said he
needs nore information to have absolute faith that the Pebble
proj ect should proceed.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked what information the |egislature had
before the passing the Kensington project resolution.

1: 32: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he did not know what Representative
LeDoux relied upon in order to nake her decision. He said he
does not have enough information to judge the Pebbl e project.

1: 33: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the public perceives HCR 29 as a
way to kill the project.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER spoke to an article from Al aska Magazi ne
that defined the issue colloquially. He said he is not debating
the merits of the mne or nmaking a conclusion for or against the
m ne, and he noted that he has given the commttee information
provided by the mnmning conmpany on the potential econonic
benefits of a mne. This is a public process, and he is not
taking a position for or against, he stated.

1: 35: 28 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 6- February 10, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said that sone of this conmunication only
speaks to an open pit mne, and he has been told it may not be
an open pit m ne.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that is his own consternation; people
are making judgnents before the information is known. That is
why he believes it is inperative that the |I|egislature get
information that would help determ ne whether the project should
be devel oped.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said the state is trying to streamine the
permtting process, and this is a 180-degree turn fromthat. He
asked if HCR 29 creates uncertainty for devel opers.

1:37:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said we need to know what we are doing
before we do it.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked if the state is doing that now.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the state has an adequate regulatory

process, but this project rises to another |evel. He said he
worked on offshore oil and gas prospects that proceeded wth
extrenme caution. This is a nega-project and needs the sane

degree of attention.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS said, "It's not broke but let's fix it
anyway. "

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he has received requests to repea
all mning regulations in Al aska.

1: 39: 07 PM

CO CHAIR RAVRAS asked for a definition of a mnega-project in
relation to Al aska m ne projects.

1:40: 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he is not prepared to describe al
other projects, but the Pebble project has been on his radar

screen, and his |evel of concern is high.

1: 40: 47 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -7- February 10, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if this sanme type of resolution
shoul d be applied to all najor projects in Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said all projects should conply wth
statutory and regul atory requirenents.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX repeat ed her questi on.
1:41: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he believes the first two resolves
are a renmnder to the conmssioner, and regarding the |ast
poi nt, how nmany times have we asked for a report? "W do it al
the time, but we don't do it for everything," he noted. The
| egislature has the ability to make a policy statenment that says
it cares about something. The legislature and the public would
be well served in this particular case to have the highest
possi bl e degree of confidence that the process has been open,
objective, and fair, he said.

1: 43: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if Representative Hawker would do
this for all projects.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said no; he would evaluate any future
prospect on its own nerits.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said there are a nunber of projects in

sensitive areas, like oil and gas exploration in Bristol Bay.
He asked if Alaska's environnental regulations and oversight
have been weakened to the point of taking this step. "I's that

what we are sayi ng?" he asked.

1:45: 01 PM

REPRESENTATIVE HAWKER said he has not inplied that the
| egi sl ature has weakened any environnental standards. He said
he wants to gain the public confidence.

1:45: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the title uses the word "requesting",

but then the resolve uses the word "shoul d". He said he is
supportive of what Representative Hawker is doing.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 8- February 10, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER  sai d he was advi sed t hat t he
constitutional separation of powers allowed the legislature to
only request this from the comm ssioner. He said he is taking
t he advi ce of |egal counsel.

1: 48: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that the conformty of the resolution
is his only concern.

CO CHAIR RAVRAS said the commttee should | ook at the resolution
the | egi slature passed regardi ng the Kensington m ne.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said he is in awe of the passionate debate
regarding the mine, but his intent is to nmake sure the science
is debated on the nerits.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said a resolution is generally innocuous,
but the governor and many in the |egislature say we are open for
busi ness. She said that neans we are open for all businesses
and HCR 29 sends m xed nessages and creates hurdles.

1:51:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE OLSON asked if the Pebble is under nore scrutiny
t han the gasline.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said each project nust be evaluated, and
he does not believe the Pebble project is under nore scrutiny
t han t he gasli ne.

1:52: 35 PM

M KE MENGE, Commi ssioner, Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR),
said he will speak from the heart. He said |large projects have
a lot of enotion, and when there is enotion it is DNRs
responsibility to be cold and unenotional. A project of this
magni tude will include |ocal, state and federal governnent, he
said, and it wll be Ilooked at from a thousand different
directions. The people of Alaska will ultimately deci de whet her
this project will go forward, and this is done through the
permtting process, and it cannot begin before a project
description because each permt is specific. "W take a great
deal of pride in our ability to organize all of the information
and all of the analysis into a neaningful process.” He said the
process will be played out before everyone in the country.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 9- February 10, 2006



1:57: 20 PM

COM SSIONER MENGE said it is his job to synthesize the

information, and the project wll receive all the scrutiny
necessary. He said the resolution is a step beyond what DNR
usual |y does, and he warned that it nay becone a precedent. | t
will not affect the way all of the agencies involved wll

del i berate, and he told the legislators that they should play an
active role. He said he respects the |egislative process, and

the body will be able to determine if it needs to go beyond
"what we already have, and we will certainly honor and respect
that will." He said the resolution cones with a price tag:
$400,000 for a two-year process. He said it is a solid,
defensi ble fiscal note. It represents one full-tinme enployee
and three part-tine staff for two years. The fiscal note has a
heavy travel conponent, he added. He said his hard-bitten
prof essi onals have been through the process nmany tines, and he
has tremendous faith in them He said the legislature will hear

many i npassionate individuals, but in nost cases, only a portion
of what is heard will be correct.

2:02: 23 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked about the cost being nore than what the
agency woul d do anyway.

COWM SSI ONER MENGE said the fiscal note is the best guess to
fulfill "this effort,” and he m ght be able to trimit sone.

2:03: 42 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUELS noted that the resolution is not for or against
the mne, and asked if there wll there be a delay due to the
extra layer of permtting.

COM SSIONER  MENGE said the effort would have to run
concurrently with an additional |ayer of activity.

2:05:16 PM

CO CHAIR SAMJELS asked if the parameters of the mne changed,
wi Il the managenent plan have to be redone. He also asked if
the national environmental conmunity would use this "as yet
anot her tool" to stop devel opnent.

2:06: 21 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -10- February 10, 2006



COMM SSIONER MENGE said it certainly is an issue that wll
garner national and international attention, and no opportunity
wll be mssed to advance the agenda of those who support or
oppose the nine. "Additional process is that—additiona
process—and wl|l provide sonme small opportunities.” He
continued, "This will not present a unique challenge that would
not have presented itself in abundance throughout both the state
and the federal permtting process.”

2:07:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX said she is confused because the sponsor
said the resolution just makes sure DNR follows the |aw by
conducting an open and transparent process, and she asked why it
woul d need addi ti onal noney.

COW SSI ONER MENGE said he appreciates the confusion. He said
there is a tremendous anount of statute regulation that dictates

what DNR does. He said a land-use plan has a life in and of
itself; it allows for the classification of lands. "It does in
no way allow for the permtting,” he said. The permtting
process will grind each issue to powder, leading to the issuance

of the permts necessary to do the activity. The |and-use plan
is a process about what to do with the lands, he said, and it
will be two processes running parallel. He said the two can
affect each other, but they have their own separate origin,
process and endi ng.

2:09:44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX concl uded that the resolution is nore than
sinply doing his job.

COWM SSI ONER MENGE said yes because it asks for a mnmanagenent
pl an.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked the position of the adm nistration.

COMM SSI ONER MENGE said the adm nistration does not support the
resol uti on because the current process is sufficient, but if it
is the will of the legislature, DNR will not oppose it.

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS asked if the resolution wll have a

negative inpact on other businesses desiring to do resource
devel opnent .

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -11- February 10, 2006



COM SSIONER MENGE said there is no way to predict how the
resolution will be used. It does not represent any risk, but
how an individual will contort it or portray it "is left to the
i mgi nati on of those we've all dealt with over the years.™
2:11:38 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS asked about the term "nega-project”.

COWMWM SSI ONER MENGE said that by convention a mega-project is

sonething that costs nore than $5 billion. Dependi ng on how
much resources are found, the Pebble mne could be a nega-
proj ect . "W don't know what this project is ultimately going
to be,” he noted. Wth each successive drill season, it appears
that the resource is richer and nore w despread, which could
make the project |ess invasive, he added. It could be the

| ar gest gol d/ copper project in the world.
2:13:24 PM

STEVE BORELL, Executive Director, Alaska Mners Association,
said this bill duplicates what is already in state law. He said
once an application is made, an Environmental |npact Statenent
(EI'S) and permt process takes place. He noted that the EIS for
the Pogo mne took three years to conplete and had multiple

opportunities for public participation. He said it is not an
i nnocuous resol ution. It will be carried to Wall Street,
Toronto and London and make investors afraid of investing in the
Pebble mne and in all of Al aska. It will spill over to the

Arctic National WIldlife Refuge and the gasline, he warned.

2:17: 00 PM

RI CHARD JAMESCN, Pr esi dent, Renewabl e Resources Coalition,
Anchorage, said his group is pro-devel opnent, but the Pebble
mne is in the wong place. "It is a huge, nonstrous area," he
said. He played a video for the commttee.

2:22: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked for a list of contributors to the
Renewabl e Resources Coalition.

MR. JAMESON said he is not allowed to provide one.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked how nany nenbers and contributors
t here are.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -12- February 10, 2006



MR. JAMESON said there are several hundred.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if they are nostly from the Bristol
Bay ar ea.

MR. JAMESON said they are from a wide variety of places, and
many are fromthe Bristol Bay area.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if a majority is fromBristol Bay.
MR. JAMESON said that that is probably correct.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if the Renewable Resources Coalition
supports HCR 29, and if it views it as a way to stop the m ne.

MR. JAMESON said it supports the resolution and it does not see
it as a way to stop the mne. He said his group thinks that it
does only a little bit nore than existing regulations, but not
much. It will draw attention to the project forcing DNR to give
it nmore careful consideration

2:24: 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what a [501c6] organization is.

MR. JAMESON said it is simlar to a trade organization or a
chanber of comrerce, and his group is made up primarily of
busi nessnen. He said «contributions are not treated as
charitable for tax purposes.

2:24:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the Alaska Center for the
Envi ronnment contributes to his organization.

MR. JAMESON said he borrowed its map, but the group is not a
contri butor.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked his position on oil and gas
exploration in Bristol Bay.

MR. JAMESON said the organization does not have a position and
that "we are businessnmen and are pro-devel opnent, but this is
just the wong place."”

2:25: 14 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -13- February 10, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked how | ong the group has exi st ed.
MR. JAMESON sai d about six nonths.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD wondered why there is no position on oil
and gas devel opnent in the same area as the Pebble m ne.

MR. JAMESON said the group may take a position on it at sone
poi nt .

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that M. Janeson can't identify who
contributes, but he wants to know how nuch noney and if there
are overseas contributors.

VR. JAMESON answered that there are no contributors from
over seas.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "It is disconcerting and it creates
an certain air of suspicion" about a group that seens to be
fairly large and "substantially well funded and probably by sone

groups, and | personally would like to know which groups.” He
said he can't prove or disprove that nenbers are from Bristol
Bay, and it seem incredulous to him "It just lays the

suspi cion down right on the ground,"” he stated.
2:27:21 PM

MR. JAMESON said, "To date, there are no organizations that are
funding us. It is all fromindividual contributions.”

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked how many other projects the group
has | ooked at.

MR. JAMESON repeated that the group has only existed for six
nont hs and Pebble is its primary concern.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said it seens |ike a brown paper. She
said legislators have to list their contributors and whom they
work for and what the check nunber is. "To have sonebody join
the public process who has a very secretive nenbership is
di st urbing."

2:28: 51 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS pointed out that Alaskans for Responsible
M ning, for exanple, have a list of secret contributors. He

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -14- February 10, 2006



said it is not right to denonize this group. "There's plenty of
secrecy out there | obbying all kinds of different ways."

MR. JAMESON said his group is in favor of the resolution and
opposed to the mne, "as we understand its location and its
manner of construction.” He said he understands that Northern
Dynasty keeps com ng out with new plans, but at a m ni num HCR 29
shoul d be adopted as a reasonable first step in naking sure that
this incredible area is protected.

2: 30: 06 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUELS asked if the mne permtting system should have
an extra layer in general. He said he grew up in the area, and
he asked if the Pebble mne would be different from other m nes
in Al aska.

MR. JAMESON said open pit mnes are so nmuch different. Wen the
Bristol Bay Mnagenent Plan was created, people didn't do open

pit mnes to get small quantities of gold and copper. Si nce
then, the process has been developed, and it is a very dangerous
process. He said he didn't think the existing managenent plan

ever considered a huge open pit mne like Northern Dynasty is
pr oposi ng.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked his group's response if the
resol ution passed, and then the report indicated that the mne
coul d operate safely.

MR. JAMESON said that is a possible outcone, but DNR wll
probably conclude that the headwaters of the Bristol Bay
watershed is not a place for an open pit mne. He noted that
Northern Dynasty is not wlling "to let DNR take a good close
| ook at this."

2:32: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said the Renewable Resources Coalition
supports HCR 29 in hopes that it interferes [wth the m ne].

MR. JAMESON said the resolution will give closer scrutiny by DNR
to the process, and then DNR may conclude that this is not an
envi ronnental |y sound project.

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if the group would still oppose a
mne if it weren't an open pit m ne.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 15- February 10, 2006



MR  JAMESON said he doesn't know the ramfications of a
m neshaft mne for a sulfide mneral deposit.

2:34:04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked him if he has a position on mnes in
ot her countries, because nmnes in the United States are cl eaner
t han el sewhere.

MR. JAMESON said that is not true as far as open pit nmnes are
concer ned. He noted that many states have prohibited cyanide
m ni ng because open pit mnes have fouled their streanms. "Maybe
we are better off than Argentina...but there's a lot to be
| ear ned about nethodol ogy for open pit mnes."

2: 35: 05 PM

ROGER BURGGRAF, Fairbanks, said he has been appalled by specia
interest groups locking up Al aska and denying Al askans good
paying jobs. He said that Northern Dynasty doesn't know what it
is going to do, so he questioned studying the issue now. He
said studying delays projects. He added that there are adequate
regulations in place, and the public will have an opportunity to
review the facts. He pondered the inpacts on the state's
permanent fund if the project is stopped. He noted that one of
t he individuals who opposes the project is an investor who has a

lodge in Iliama, and he takes his clients out there to "do
investnments." M. Burggraf said he believes this individual has
an investment firmwth between four and six billion dollars of

Al aska' s permanent fund noney.
2:38: 05 PM

JEFF PARKER, Attorney for Trout Unlimted and [Robert] G Illam on
transportation issues related to the Pebble mne, said he
supports the resolution, which provides a step-down nanagenent
plan, allowing the public to focus on the affected portion of
the Bristol Bay drainage and whether a |arge-scale, open-pit,
sulfide mne should be allowed prior to going through the
permtting process. He noted that DNR has done these plans in
the past, and he gave several exanples. He said that DNR shoul d
conplete the step-down process prior to the permtting process
because it wll be focused and nuch cheaper. He said a
permtting process wll include fifty agencies with hundreds of
experts, and he noted that a recent mailing to federal experts
on the Pebble project included about 250 federal enployees. He
stated that HCR 29 |lets the people speak on whether this kind of

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 16- February 10, 2006



m ning should be allowed in such an inportant drainage. "It's
cheaper; the comm ssioner's fiscal note that is already
submtted shows you that."

2:41: 53 PM

MARK HELLENTHAL said he perforned a public opinion survey in the
i npacted area in January. He reported that 265 residents were
surveyed out of a population of 4,200, which included 11
villages and the town of Dillingham He said 96.2 percent had
heard of the Pebble mne. After screening for registered
voters, only 8.7 percent strongly favored the devel opment of the
mne, 11.3 percent sonewhat favored the developnent, 15.1 were
sonewhat opposed, and a resounding 56.6 percent strongly opposed
the developnent. He said a series of questions were asked after
giving information on enploynent, and nore people answered that
t hey opposed the m ne.

CO CHAI R RAMRAS said the committee had those results.
2:45: 37 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked who paid for the survey.

MR. HELLENTHAL said no one yet, but tw I|ife-long Al askans
contacted himto conduct the survey: Art Hackney and Bob G Il am

CO CHAIR SAMUELS asked if there was a political subdivision to
t he boundaries of the survey, and he noted that sonme areas were
not ably absent fromthe survey.

2:47:14 PM

MR, HELLENTHAL said he used a map to find the closest villages
and ran it by the client. He said that no political boundaries
were considered, and the general guideline was a concentric
circle around the inpacted area.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what the statew de response woul d be.
MR. HELLENTHAL said nost of the state has not followed the
I ssue. He suspects 96 percent of people in Fairbanks woul dn't
have the foggi est idea what the Pebble gold nmne is.

2:48: 38 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -17- February 10, 2006



BARBARA HUFF TUCKNESS, Spokesperson, Alaska American Federation
of Labor and Congress of Industrial Oganizations (AFL-CIO,
said her group supports the resolution. She said other projects
have had legislative input, and the North Star project had an
actual bill devoted to it. She said local hire and |ocal
contracting was in that bill, but it is not in HCR 29, and that
i ssue should be |ooked at as the Pebble project nobves forward.
She noted that the gas pipeline Stranded Gas Act is another
exanple of legislative input. She said the AFL-ClI O supports the
public process and wants to nmke sure the information 1is

provided to the public. She said the group is absolutely not
anti-Pebble but has a history of supporting mning and oil
devel opnent. She concluding by requesting the conmttee support

a thorough review of the process.
2:51:37 PM

CO CHAIR RAMRAS asked the advantage to organized |abor of
sl owi ng down the process.

M5. TUCKNESS said it is not slowing down the process, but an
open public process is a good thing. She said the group's
menbership is not public, but that does not nean it is a
secretive organization.

2:52:46 PM

BRI AN KRAFT, Director, Bristol Bay Alliance, Business Oaner,
said the Bristol Bay Alliance was created to educate people in
the area on mning issues. He stated that the Pebble project is
a massive issue. Open pit mning has long-term negative
impacts. He told the conmttee to | ook at other states, such as
Mont ana, W sconsin, |daho, Nevada and Arizona where open pit
m nes have done danage. |In sonme of those states open pit mning
is now banned. He said he started out in favor of the mning
project, but after learning nore, he cane to his conclusions.
He also noted that it takes a long tine to learn the issues.
The public needs a w de opportunity, not 45 days, to speak their
mnd and to | earn about the process.

2:55:14 PM

MR. KRAFT said if HCR 29 adds another |ayer of protection, "I
enbrace it." He added that he is not trying to stop the mne,
but he wants DNR to have all necessary tools. He stated that
Northern Dynasty wll do a presentation to the commttee on
Monday, and he has seen it various tines. He said Northern

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 18- February 10, 2006



Dynasty will do its best to convince the legislature that it
will operate safely. He said Northern Dynasty wants to do a
safe and environnentally sound project, so it should enbrace any
kind of legislation that adds protection to the residents of
Al aska.

2:56: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked about the nenbership of the Bristol
Bay Alliance.

MR. KRAFT said it is a nonprofit, and the board nenbers are
seven people, four are Native Alaskans from the Bristol Bay
area, and there are 125 nenbers wth paid nenbership. The
majority are Al askans, but there are some fromthe |ower 48. He
said the mailing list is massive, and it is basically every
person in Bristol Bay. He said he started the alliance to give
the people in the area a chance to learn both sides of mning
i ssues. He said Northern Dynasty was visiting all the villages
doing presentations, but the comunities weren't seeing both
si des. The purpose is not to stop the mne, but the decisions
can't be made w thout educati on.

2:58:17 PM

JACK HOBSON, President, Nondalton Tribal Council, said the
council has over 400 nenbers, and all 220 nenbers from Nondalton
are opposed to the Pebble mne. He said he has been to neetings
with Northern Dynasty where pronises are nade, "and we all know

that promses are made to be broken.” He stated that if
Northern Dynasty could guarantee that there would be zero net
| oss, the Council may |ook again at the issue. The people of

Nondal ton support HCR 29 Dbecause Northern Dynasty has a
Menor andum of Understanding with DNR where Northern Dynasty is
paying DNR workers, which may cause biased decision-naking.
Opinions mght be tainted because DNR is getting noney from
Nort hern Dynasty, and he concluded that Native Al askans rely on
renewabl e resources, especially pure water.

3: 00: 55 PM

BOBBY ANDREW Secretary, Bristol Bay Alliance, said he is
speaking on the behalf of sone of the villages in the area and
Dl lingham Those villages support the resolution, which places
a strong foundation to protect subsistence resources and
reinforces DNR to follow requirenents. It will help get rural
villages involved in the process, he said, whhich is very

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -19- February 10, 2006



i nportant. Education is key at the local and regional |evel
The Bristol Bay area has educated and uneducated individuals, he
stated. There are prom ses of many jobs, he said. Mny of the
positions require at |east five years of mning experience, and
nost residents don't have that experience. "Once those permt
applications go through, there's many of us tariingituput (who
won't understand)." The applications and statenents wll be
foreign to the local people. "This resolution will give us the
opportunity to educate ourselves also."

3:05:45 PM

CO CHAI R RAMRAS said the next speaker, Robert Gllam is "one of
the noving forces behind" HCR 29. Co-Chair Ranras said he
wanted to correct the earlier testinony of Roger [Burggraf] who
suggested that M. GIlam manages a disproportionate anount of
the Al aska permanent fund, "and that is not the case.” He said
M. GIllam has a private-sector job nanaging noney for the
Publ i ¢ Enpl oyees and Teacher's Retirenent fund and the permanent

f und. It is regulated in law, and "this notion that it is sone
di sproportionate sum and there is any undue influence in the
room as a result of that, | want to dispel that and say that
what ever your opinion is about HCR 29, that the integrity M.
Gllamis resolute.™ He added that M. GIllam has contributed
to many institutions and communities in Al aska. "I am al ways
concerned when we get personal about people, and you're a good
man, " he sai d.

3:08: 20 PM

ROBERT d LLAM Renewabl e Resources Coalition, said his conpany
manages about one percent of the Alaska permanent fund and the
Public Enployees and Teacher's Retirenent funds using 100
percent Al askan-born young people who have held their own
agai nst other investnment firnms around the world. He said he and

his conpany own about $1 billion worth of mning conpany stocks
around the world. "W are, in fact, the fifth |argest owner of
Teck Cominco in the world." He said he is not here to bad nouth
the mning industry. He added that as a professional investor

he can tell the conmttee what nakes sense and what does not
make sense. He said HCR 29 asks if open pit mning nmakes sense
in the Bristol Bay watershed. Northern Dynasty is a second tier
m ning conpany and it has never mned gold; they have never had
a dollar worth of revenue, he said. This conpany is a pronotion
conpany, he added, therefore, the promses being nmde by
Northern Dynasty are being made on behalf of a company that has
not been identified. It is not the prom ses of Northern Dynasty

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 20- February 10, 2006



that matter, it is the prom ses of people who are yet to be
determ ned. He said never, ever in the western hem sphere has a
sul fide mne been done properly. "They always pollute.™ He
said when sulfur hits oxygen and water it turns into sulfuric
aci d. He said mnes in Fairbanks do not do that. He said his
conpany has invested billions of dollars in mning stocks
because it can be done right - but not with sulfuric rock.

3:11: 55 PM

CO-CHAIR RAMRAS said the discussion of HCR 29 will continue on
Monday. HCR 29 was hel d over.

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Resources Standing Comm ttee neeting was adjourned at 3:12 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -21- February 10, 2006



